HOLMAN STATE PARK
in .
POLK COUNTY

Holman State Park is a small, pleasantly situated area with a
background of local historic interest. It adjoins the north side of the
Salem - Dallas Highway (State 22), 4 4 miles west of Salem's business
center; snuggled between the roadway and the rising south slope of the
pleasant and fruitful Eola Hills. On the opposite side of the highway
is the Willamette Valley railroad rlosely paralleling the Willamette River
Tor a short distance along the park front as it transports long traln
loads of logs and lumber from the Coast Range forests.

The park borders upon the highway for a distance of 1 517 feet cast
and west, and is 2¢8.8 feet in width described by metes and bounds as
being in Bection 30, Township 7 South Range 3 Weat, Willamctte meridien,
in Polk County, containing 8.62 arres. The origlnal deed was dated April
17 1922, which was superseded by a -orrection deed signed Derember 29, 1925.

The west end of the tract is bounded by the Eola - Chaplin corners
county road s it begins its ascent of the hills The east line of the one
time Eola townsite is forty feet more o less; west and arross the county
road from the scuthwest corner of the park.

Tovnships 7 South, Ranges 3 and 4 West, Willamette meridian,, which
hold the park and townsites were surveyed by William Ired between November 10
1851 end February 5, 1852 and approved by Jno. B Preston, Surveyor General
at Oregon City Februsry 5. 1852. Included in these townships were the two
William Duran Donation Land (!laims, No's 61 and 50. The park is a portion
of No. 69.

Two townshites wore platted in this immediate viclnity. Eola was

laid out on both sides of the range linc betwesn sections 37 and 25. The



other called "Cincinnatti", was platted west of and tou-hing the range
line for a distance of eight blerka north from the river. A post office
was established at "Cincimmatti” on June 5 1851  Joshua Shaw, a2 Donation
Land Claim settler was the first postmaster.

On page 248, "Scott s History of the Oregon Country' we read:
"Mrs Abigail Scott Duniway taught a s-hool at Eola in 1853. This village was
three and one half miles west of Wegt Salem on Rickreall River, forme:r-ly
ralled Cinfinnati ¥ Tt was incorporated as a town under the name Eola, by'
the territ rial legislature January 1/, 1855 (Special Laws 185:). Land-
owners of the site were William Duran and Joshue Shaw  The firat town
clection took place in Mar<h 1856 condu-ted by J. B V. Builer, William
Hayden and A C. R Shaw'.

014 maps show La Creole Creek (now Ri lreall River) as entering
the Willamette River approximately two miles east of its present outlet
At that time the Willamette River touched the southeast corner of Township
7 South Range 4 West, then made a2n a ute bend to the southeast swinging
back to its present - hannel where the La Creole formerly joined it. The
flood of 1890, whi-h reached a vest of 3. 1 feet at Salem surged thrp an
old channel, entering and sweeping down the old La Crecle stream bed, where
it still flows.

This Eola "Cinrinnatti" area seems to have been an ambitious, early
day community If it attained any prominen-e this was eclipsed by the much
better situated and perhaps more enterprising ritizens of the Salem vicinage,

as hopes of futwre greatness for these embryo Lowns were never realized:

¥ In the offire of the Mar-ion County Surveyor there are on file two town-

site plats One for Cincinnati and cne for Eola whi h are entirely different.



The Eola-Chaplin Corners road, tou-hing the park has becn ro-
ferred to as a part of the carly territorial road system. This does
not scom to he substantiated by official rorords of that time. "A map of
Oregon Territory Woet of Casrade Mtn s. Surveyor Gonecrals Office, 0 T.
0 tobor 1. 1885 C. K. Gardner, Surveyor Gencral and printed as Senatc
Excrutive Document No. 1, 3kth. Congress 1st. Session" shows a terri-
torisl road crossing the Wiﬂamct£c River at Salcm, which is followecd,
approximatoly, by the present location of the Salcm-Dallas Highway to Dallas.
vhere it connccted with the road which crossed the river from Oregon City
to "Linn City” thence westerly to connect with a road from Portland, thru
Lafayetfc, to Dayton, Dallaes, Corvallis, on to Winchester and beyond:
thence to southern Oregon and California

From the Salem-Dellas road there was a less uscd one which turned
south from "Cincinnatti", crossed the Luckizmutc River at the present Hel-
mick State Park sitc, and connectod with the main west-side torritorial
road alt the southwest cormcr of Township 10 South, Range 3 West, Willamette
meridian south of Dallas. The only other territorial road shown on this
authentic map of 1855 as being west of the Willamette River and north of
the Salem-Dallas road, is the Dayton-Dallas route  This was then the most
popular cne from the north to peoints scouth of Dallas, and most of the carly
travel southward from Szlem also passod Tthru Dallas whon cnroute to Eugone
or points farther south. I the Tola-Chaplin-Corners road had ever boen deosig-
natcd as a part of the carly territoriasl system 1t was evidently later than
the Survcyor Goneral's report of 1855.l

An alternative south bound route from Oregeon Clty was thru Silverton,
and the present Lcebanon, to Spore's ferry. whirh crossed the M-Kenzie River

noar Springficld, and conmnectod with the west side road for journcyings



farther south,; not unlike the present road routings.

The rather narrow, elongated Holman Park area is situated at the
gouth base of the Eola Hills, where highway and rallroad occupy most of the
usable land botweon the park and the Willamettc River. The westerly portion
of the park, wherc dcvclopment has been carried on, has a low highway bank,
with a =loping background that rises for a distance of one hundred Tifty
feet or morce to the flowing spring that wells from the base of the stecper
ground, Just below the turn of the county road as it begins the ascent of
the Eola Hilis Tho pari land, as it rises in its easterly trend. is
shaded by fir, oak and maple trecs thruout- its defect a heavy infestation
of poison oak that precludes its use for a pi-nic arca until the poisonous
gshrub is eradi-ated. When this 1s ac-omplished the area usable for »nic-
nicking can be considerably onlarged. However, the clevation of the vpark
spring is too low to supply waler to this castcrn portion.

The cleoarcd ground has long becn a picnic arca, for small local
and Salcem family groups who now utilize the availablo tables and other park
facilitice particularly on the bright and werm days of spring and autumn
The spring wag also a popular drinking fount for passcrs-by, and o watering
place for animals long before this ponular site became a state park.

The drinking fountain is now much used by thesc who know the spring
and appreclate the cool goodness of its.flow; so convenlcntly accessiblc
beside the highway.

Imbeddod in concreto necr the drinking fountain is an jron banel,
which is of histori- intercet to the older citizens of the Salem arca. by
recason of its associations and long use as a drinkihg place for the thirsty

horses that brought people and produrec to the city's marts.



Once a mork of considerable distinction in tho community, it was
moved from place to place a8 needs arosc  ite last location on State street,
in front of the Ladd and Bush Bank Building As Salem z2ssumed = more metro-
politan air with the growing usc of automobiles, the incongruity of its pre-
sonce In front of this veneroble institution, aftor the passing of the
"horsc and buggy days" wae only too apparent, and in Xcoping with the citys
progress, it was removed to its present and final resting place in Holmean

State Park.
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HOLMAN PARK

Recommendations

Holmen Park should remain as a picnic wayside area. In time
its present picnic area may be enlerged eastward. but the vnresent
facilities are sufficient for the patronage of the park at this time.
The sunken barrel above the drinking fountaln should have a tablet com-
memorating its earliy usage in the city of SBalem as a horse watering
trough, 1t standing on the cwb in front of Ladd and Bush bani. The
wooded area should have a geners® :leanup for Tire pretection vurposes.

The wooded hillside should be added to the preszent park.

May 7. 1948 S. H. Boaraman
State Parks Superintendent



